Hot Melt Applicators TrueCoat[®] HP

Manual P/N 7179962_04 - English -

Edition 06/19



NORDSON ENGINEERING GMBH • LÜNEBURG • GERMANY

Note

This document applies to the entire series.

Order number

P/N = Order number for Nordson articles

Note

This is a Nordson corporation publication which is protected by copyright. Copyright © 2013. No part of this document may be photocopied, reproduced or translated to another language without the prior written consent of Nordson Corporation. The information contained in this publication is subject to change without notice.

> © 2019 All rights reserved. - Translation of original -

Trademarks

4800 INTEGRA, AccuJet, AeroCharge, Allegro, Apogee, AquaGuard, Artiste, Asymtek, Automove, Autotech, Avex, Baitgun, BKG, Blue Box, BM-32, BM-58, BM-63, Bowtie, Build-A-Part, CanWorks, Century, CF, CleanSleeve, CleanSpray, Color-on-Demand, ColorMax, Connections to Life, Conexis, Contour, Control Coat, Coolwave, Cross-Cut, CrystallCut, Dage, Dial-A-Dose, Dima, DispenseJet, DispenseMate, DuraBlue, DuraDrum, Durafiber, DuraPail, Dura-Screen, Durasystem, Easy Coat, Easymelt, Easymove Plus, Ecodry, Econo-Coat, EDI, e.dot, EFD, Eliminator, Encore, Equatherm, ESP, e-stylized, ETI-stylized, Excel 2000, Fibrijet, Fillmaster, FlexiCoat, Flexi-Spray, Flex-O-Coat, FlexTRAK, Flow Sentry, Fluidmove, FoamMelt, FoamMelt-stylized, FoamMix, S. Freedom, Fulfill, GreenUV, Heli-flow, Helix, Hot Shot, iControl, iDry, iFlow, IntelliJet, Isocoil, Isocore, Iso-Flo, iTRAX, JR, KB30, Kinetix, KISS, Lean Cell, Little Squirt, LogiComm, Magnastatic, March, Matrix, MatriX, Maverick, Measuring the Invisible, MEG, Meltex, MicroCoat, MicroMark, Micromedics, Micro-Meter, MicroSet, MicroSet, Microshot, Millenium, MiniBlue, Mini Squirt, Moist-Cure, Mountaingate, MultiScan, NexJet, No-Drip, Nordson, Nordson-stylized, Nordson and Arc, nXheat, NYTVision, OptiMix, Optima, Optimum, Package of Values, Paragon, PatternView, PermaFlo, PICO, PicoPulse, Plasmod, PluraFoam, Poly-Check, Polymer Solution Casting, Porous Coat, Posi-Dose, PowderGrid, Powderware, Precisecoat, PRIMARC, Printplus, Prism, ProBlue, Diberty, Prodigy, Pro-Flo, Program-A-Shed, Program-A-Stream, Program-A-Swirl, ProLink, Pro-Meter, Pro-Stream, Pulsar, Quantum, Ratio-Pak, RBX, ReadySet, Rhino, Saturn, Saturn with rings, Scoreguard, SC5, S. design stylized, Seal Sentry, Sealant Equipment & Engineering, Inc., SEE and design, See-Flow, Select Charge, Select Coat, Select Cure, Servo-Flo, Shot-A-Matic, Signature-stylized, Slautterback, Smart-Coat, Sure-Max, SureWrap, Symphony, Tela-Therm, Tip-Seal, Tracking Plus, TRAK, Trends, Tribomatic, Trilogy, TrueBlue, TrueCoat, Tubesetter, Turbo, Ultra, U

Accubar, Active Nozzle, Advanced Plasma Systems, AeroDeck, AeroWash, AirShield, AltaBlue, AltaSlot, Alta Spray, AquaCure, ATS, Auto-Flo, Autoflex, AutoScan, Axiom, Best Choice, BetterBook, BetterDispensing, Blue Series, Bravura, CanNeck, CanPro, Celero, Chameleon, Champion, Check Mate, ClassicBlue, Classic IX, Clean Coat, Cobalt, Concert, ContourCoat, Controlled Fiberization, Control Weave, CPX, CScan+, cSelect, Cyclo-Kinetic, DispensLink, DropCure, Dry Cure, DuraBraid, DuraCoat, DuraPUR, e.dot+, E-Nordson, Easy Clean, EasyOn, EasyPW, Eclipse, EcoBead, EdgeControl, Emerald, Equalizer, Equi=Bead, Exchange Plus, FillEasy, Fill Sentry, FlexSeam, FlexVIA, Flow Coat, Fluxplus, G-Net, G-Site, Genius, Get Green With Blue, Gluie, Horizon, Ink-Dot, Inspire, iON, Iso-Flex, iTrend, JetStream, KVLP, Lacquer Cure, LightTite, Loadermove Touch, Maxima, MaxVIA, Mesa, MesoSPHERE, MicroDot, MicroFin, MicroMax, MicroSpray, Mikros, MiniEdge, Minimeter, MiniPUR, MonoCure, Multifil, MultiScan, Myritex, Nano, OmniScan, OptiStroke, Optix, Origin, Partnership+Plus, PatternJet, PatternPro, PCI, PharmaLok, PicoDot, PicoTouch, Pinnacle, PluraMix, Powder Pilot, Powder Port, Powercure, Process Sentry, Pulse Spray, PURBlue, PUReOne, PURJet, PurTech, Qadence, Quad Cure, Ready Coat, RediCoat, RollVIA, Royal Blue, Select Series, Sensomatic, Shaftshield, SheetAire, Smartfil, Smart Tune, SolidBlue, Spectral, Spectronic, SpeedKing, SPHERE, Spray Works, StediTherm, StratoSPHERE, StrokeControl, Summit, Sure Brand, Sure Foam, Sure Mix, SureSeal, Swirl Coat, TAH, Tempus, ThruCoat, ThruWave, TinyCure, Trade Plus, Trio, TruFlow, Ultraflex, Ultra Soam, Sure Mix, SureSeal, Swirl Coat, TAH, Tempus, ThruCoat, ThruWave, TinyCure, Trade Plus, Trio, TruFlow, Ultraflex, Ultra FoamMix, Ultrasaver, Ultrasmart, Unity, UNITYMotion, Universal, ValueMate, Versa, VersaPUR, VIA, Viper, Vista, VP Quick Fit, VP Quick-Fit stylized, WaferLock, Web Cure, 781Mini, 787Mini are trademarks - 🐨 - of Nordson Corporation.

Designations and trademarks stated in this document may be brands that, when used by third parties for their own purposes, could lead to violation of the owners' right.

Inttp://www.nordson.com/en/global-directory

I

Table of Contents

Safety	1-1
Introduction	2-1
Intended Use	2-1
Unintended Use - Examples	2-1
Residual Risks	2-2
	2-2
	2-2
Applicator	2-2
	2-2
	2-2
Description of Components / Functioning	2-3
IrueCoat® HP with Control Modules	2-3
IrueCoat® HP with Throttle Screws	2-4
	2-5
Material Distribution	2-5
Control Modules	2-5
Throttle Screws	2-5
Heating	2-5
Slot Nozzle or Nozzle with Rotating Bar	2-6
Filter Cartridge	2-6
ID Plate	2-6
Installation	3-1
Unpacking	3-1
Transport	3-1
Storage	3-1
Disposal	3-1
Installing	3-2
Exhausting Material Vapors	3-2
Electrical Connections	3-3
Laying Cable	3-3
Connecting Heater	3-3
Connecting Solenoid Valves	3-3
Pneumatic Connections	3-4
Operation with Nonlubricated Compressed Air	3-4
Conditioning Compressed Air	3-4
Connecting Compressed Air	3-4
Connecting Heated Hose	3-5
Connecting	3-5
Disconnecting	3-5
Relieving Pressure	3-5
Using Two Open-end Wrenches	3-6

Operation Triggering Solenoid Valve Setting Temperatures	4-1 4-1 4-1
	4-1
	4-1
Setting Material Pressure	4-2
Positioning the Applicator	4-2
Calculating Material Quantity	4-4
Sample Calculation	4-4
Customer-specific Values	4-4
Correcting Material Quantity and Material Distribution	4-5
Adjusting Stem Stroke	4-5
Adjustment	4-6
Regulating Material Distribution with the Throttle Screws	4-7
Optimizing Material Application with Temperature Setpoints .	4-8
Correcting Nozzle Concavity	4-8
Correcting Nozzle Convexity	4-9
Setting Rotating Bar Speed	4-9
Settings Record	4-10
	-
Maintenance	5-1
	5-1
	5-2
Visual Inspection for External Damage	5-3
External Cleaning	5-3
Inspecting Control Module	5-3
Changing Type of Material	5-3
Purging with Cleaning Agent	5-4
Disassembling and Cleaning Slot Nozzle	5-5
Disassembling and Cleaning Nozzle with Rotating Bar	5-7
Replacing Rotating Bar	5-10
Inserting New Shim Plate	5-10
Refacing Nozzle	5-10
Replacing Filter Cartridge	5-11
Removing Filter Cartridge	5-11
Installing Filter Cartridge	5-12
Disassombling and Cloaning Filter Cartridge	5-12
Maintananaa Baaard	5 12
Maintenance Record Form Spore Conv	5-15
Maintenance Record Form - Spare Copy	5-14
Troubleshooting	6-1
	6-1
Troubleshooting Table	6-2
Renair	7_1
Benlacing Control Module with 1/2 Air Value	7_1
Replacing Control Module with 9/2 Air Valve	ר-ז ס_ס
Demoving Control Module	7-2
	7-2
	7-3
Replacing Heater Cartridge or Temperature Sensor	7-4 7-4
-	

Technical Data	8-1
General Data	8-1
Air Pressure	8-1
Temperatures	8-1
Electrical Data	8-2
Dimensions and Weights	8-2
Torques	8-3
Control Modules	8-3
Nozzle	8-3
Clamps	8-4

Section 1 Safety



Observe and follow all safety instructions, the general safety instructions included as a **separate** document, as well as the specific safety instructions in all other related documentation.

Section 2 Introduction

Intended Use

Hot melt applicators of the series *TrueCoat*[®] *HP* - hereafter also referred to as *Applicator* - may be used only for contact surface application of hot melt adhesives and similar hot melt products (including PUR).

Any other use is considered to be unintended. Nordson will not be liable for personal injury and/or property damage resulting from unintended use.

Intended use includes the observance of Nordson safety instructions. Nordson recommends obtaining detailed information on the materials to be used.

Unintended Use - Examples -

The applicator may not be used under the following conditions:

- When changes or modifications have been made by the customer
- In defective condition
- In a potentially explosive atmosphere
- When values stated under *Technical Data* are not complied with.

The applicator may not be used to apply the following materials:

- Explosive and flammable materials
- Erosive and corrosive materials
- Food products.

Residual Risks

In the design of the unit, every measure was taken to protect personnel from potential danger. However, some residual risks cannot be avoided. Personnel should be aware of the following:

- Risk of burns! The applicator is hot.
- Risk of burns! The material that comes out of the nozzle is hot.
- Risk of burns when connecting and disconnecting heated hoses.
- Risk of burns when conducting maintenance and repair work for which the applicator must be heated up.
- Material fumes can be hazardous. Avoid inhalation.

Note on Manual

Definition of Terms

Applicator

The term *Application head* is also used in Nordson literature.

Melter

General term for tank melters and bulk melters.

Control Module

The term *Module* is also used in Nordson literature.

Description of Components / Functioning

TrueCoat[®] HP with Control Modules



- 2 Solenoid valve plug
- 3 Solenoid valve
- 4 Control module
- 5 Filter cartridge

- 7 Clamp fixing screw
- 8 Clamping screw
- 9 Centering clamping screw
- 10 Control air connection
- 12 Nozzle
- 13 ID plate
- 14 Fastening bolts
- 15 Hose connection (material)

TrueCoat[®] HP with Throttle Screws



Fig. 2-2 TCHP with rotating bar exchangeable nozzle and throttle screws

- 1 Cable harness temperature sensors
- 2 Cable harness heating zones
- 3 Cable harness solenoid valves
- 4 Hose connection (material)
- 5 Fastening bolts
- 6 Air relief valve

- 7 Rotating bar
- 8 Stop plate for exchangeable nozzle
- 9 Clamping screw
- 10 Clamp fixing screw
- 11 Throttle screw
- 12 Exchangeable nozzle

- 13 Clamp
- 14 Eye bolt
- 15 Filter cartridge
- 16 Control module
- 17 Solenoid valve
- 18 Control air connection

Description of Components / Functioning (contd.)

Material Flow

The material is pumped through a heated hose into the applicator. In the applicator the material flows through the filter cartridge(s) and the material channels to the nozzle. The material supply to the nozzle is regulated either by control modules or throttle screws. A slot nozzle or a nozzle with rotating bar applies the material in a contact coating process.

The application pattern is determined by grooves in the mouthpiece or by a shim plate. The shim plate is located between the nozzle mouthpiece and the mouthpiece receptacle. The application pattern also depends on the speed at which the substrate moves, the quantity of material and the material temperature.

In addition, the quality of the application is influenced by the the angle between the nozzle and the substrate. Refer to page 4-2, *Positioning Applicator*.

Material Distribution

The material supply to the nozzle and material distribution across the application width are regulated by control modules or throttle screws.

Control Modules

The control modules open and close the material supply to the nozzle by raising or lowering the nozzle stem. A compression spring in the control module closes the outlet when the control air pressure drops, preventing material from escaping.

Refer to page4-6, *Setting Material Distribution Evenly with Stem Stroke Adjustment.*

Throttle Screws

Refer to page 4-7, Regulating Material Distribution with the Throttle Screws.

Heating

The applicator is heated with electrical heater cartridges. The temperature is continuously measured by temperature sensors and is controlled with electronic temperature controllers. Temperature controllers are not part of the applicator.

Slot Nozzle or Nozzle with Rotating Bar

The nozzle or the rotating bar touches the substrate, causing them to naturally wear. The nozzle may need to be refaced, the rotating bar replaced. Refer to page 5-10, *Refacing Nozzle* or page 5-10, *Replacing Rotating Bar*.

Filter Cartridge

The material flows from the inside of the filter cartridge (14, Fig. 2-1) to the outside. Thus dirt particles remain in the filter cartridge. The filter cartridge must be cleaned or replaced regularly (Refer to page 5-11).

NOTE: Nordson recommends keeping a supply of replacement filter cartridges to prevent production stoppage.

ID Plate



1st field	Туре
2nd field	Serial number
3rd field	Nordson order number
4th field	Year of construction
5th field	Operating voltage [V], rated current [A], Operating voltage frequency [Hz]

Fig. 2-3

Section 3 Installation



ATTENTION: Allow only qualified personnel to perform the following tasks. Observe and follow the safety instructions in this document and all other related documentation.

Unpacking

Unpack carefully. Then check for damage caused during transport. Reuse packaging materials or dispose of properly according to local regulations.

Transport

The applicator is a high precision, valuable part. Handle very carefully! Protect the nozzle from damage. Do this e.g. by placing it back in the original packaging.

Storage

Do not store outside! Protect from humidity and dust. Do not lay unit on the nozzle. Protect the nozzle from damage. Do this e.g. by placing it back in the original packaging.

Disposal

When your Nordson product has exhausted its purpose and/or is no longer needed, dispose of it properly according to local regulations.

Installing

Observe the following when installing the applicator:

- Protect from humidity, vibrations, dust and drafts.
- Ensure access to parts relevant for maintenance and operation.
- To achieve optimum material application, install the applicator in the parent machine such that the essential angle between the nozzle and the substrate can be varied.
- The applicator bracket must allow for heat expansion.
- Cables, air hoses and heated hoses may not be bent, pinched, torn off or otherwise damaged.

Exhausting Material Vapors

Ensure that material vapors do not exceed the prescribed limits. Exhaust material fumes when necessary. Provide sufficient ventilation of the location where the unit is installed.



ATTENTION: It is imperative that the following additional safety regulations are followed when processing polyurethane hot melt adhesives (PUR) (Refer to *General Hot Melt Material Processing Instructions*).

Electrical Connections



ATTENTION: Risk of electrical shock. Failure to observe may result in personal injury, death, or equipment damage.

Laying Cable



ATTENTION: Do not pinch cables and check regularly for damage. Replace damaged cables immediately!

Connecting Heater

Insert the voltage plug into the corresponding receptacle on the melter or terminal box. If the heater lines are integrated into the material hose, the corresponding receptacle is located directly on the material hose. Secure the voltage plug with the clamp if necessary.

The solenoid valves on the control modules are controlled either by an external power supply, e.g. control unit, or through the valve control lines of the heated hose. Secure the plug connection with the screw (1, Fig. 3-1).

Connecting Solenoid Valves



Fig. 3-1

Pneumatic Connections

Nordson recommends using dry, controlled and nonlubricated compressed air.

Operation with Nonlubricated Compressed Air

When an applicator is connected to a compressed air system in which the compressed air has previously been lubricated, simply ceasing to lubricate the air is not sufficient. The oil remaining in the compressed air supply will reach the solenoid valves and the control modules and wash out the original lubricant/oil from these parts, substantially decreasing the service life of the units.

NOTE: It must be ensured that the compressed air supply to the applicators has been converted to absolutely nonlubricated operation.

NOTE: No oil from a possibly defective compressor may be permitted to penetrate the compressed air supply.

NOTE: Nordson will assume no warranty or liability for damage caused by unpermitted, temporary lubrication.

Conditioning Compressed Air

The quality of the compressed air must be at least class 2 as stipulated by ISO 8573-1. This means:

- Max. particle size 1 μm
- Max. particle density 1 mg/m³
- Max. pressure dewpoint -40 °C
- Max. oil concentration 0,1 mg/m³.

Connecting Compressed Air

1. Connect customer's air supply to the inlet of an air conditioning unit.

Maximum air pressure:

10 bar 1 MPa 145 psi

- 2. Connect the control modules to the air conditioning unit.
- 3. Set control air pressure:

Approx. 5 to 6 bar Approx. 0.5 to MPa	0 0.6 Approx. 72.5 to 87 psi
---------------------------------------	------------------------------

Connecting Heated Hose



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

Connecting

If cold material can be found in the hose connection (1, 2), these components must be heated until the material softens (approx. 80 $^\circ$ C / 176 $^\circ$ F).

- 1. First connect the hose (3) electrically.
- 2. Heat the unit and hose until the material softens (approx. 80 $^{\circ}$ C / 176 $^{\circ}$ F).
- 3. Screw on heated hose.

CAUTION: Always connect the hose to the side of the body where the filter cartridge is. This is the only way to ensure that the material is filtered.

Fig. 3-2

Disconnecting

Relieving Pressure

ATTENTION: System and material pressurized. Before removing heated hoses and applicators, relieve system pressure. Failure to observe can result in serious burns.



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear safety goggles and heat-protective gloves.

- 1. Set the motor speed of the unit feeding the material to 0 min⁻¹; switch off the motor(s).
- 2. Place a container under the nozzle of the applicator.



1 2

3

Relieving Pressure (contd.)

- 3. Relieving pressure:
 - On an applicator with throttle screws, use the screws to open the material supply to the nozzle.
 - On an applicator with solenoid valves, activate the solenoid valves electrically or manually (Refer to Figure 3-3). Do not use sharp objects! Repeat until no more material flows out.





4. Re-use the material or dispose of it properly according to local regulations.

hose. This prevents the hose connection on the unit from turning.

Use two open-end wrenches when connecting and disconnecting the heated

Using Two Open-end Wrenches



MXHH002S033A0295



Section 4 **Operation**



ATTENTION: Allow only qualified personnel to perform the following tasks. Observe and follow the safety instructions in this document and all other related documentation.

Triggering Solenoid Valve

CAUTION: Trigger the solenoid valves only when the applicator is heated to operating temperature!

Setting Temperatures

NOTE: The basis for temperature setting is the processing temperature stipulated by the material manufacturer (usually 150 to 180 $^{\circ}$ C / 302 to 356 $^{\circ}$ F). The maximum operating temperature of the product described here may not be exceeded.

The applicator temperature required is set on the melter (maximum 200 $^\circ\text{C}$ / 392 $^\circ\text{F}$).

Enter Standby

CAUTION: When processing PUR adhesives, enter standby when production is to cease for longer than 30 minutes.

Setting Control Air Pressure

The control air pressure is set to suit each application on an air conditioning unit. The air conditioning unit with pressure control valve is not part of the applicator.

Set control air pressure:

Approx. 5 to 6 bar	Approx. 0.5 to 0.6 MPa	Approx. 72.5 to 87 psi
--------------------	------------------------	------------------------

Nordson will assume no warranty or liability for damage caused by an incorrect pressure setting.

Setting Material Pressure

The material pressure is generated by the melter pumps. The maximum material pressure may not be exceeded:

60 bar 6 MPa 870 psi

Positioning the Applicator

TrueCoat® HP applicators can be used to coat against a roll.



- 1 Applicator
- 2 Nozzle

3 Coating roll

4 Substrate

5 Contact line Nozzle/substrate

The optimum angle of incidence of the applicator depends on various customer-specific parameters. It is within the range of - 5° to + 10° .

The contact line (5) should be at the line at which the substrate (4) runs onto the roll (3). The nozzle always has contact to the substrate (Refer to Fig. 4-1).

Ensure that contact is only on the dark gray segment of the coating roll (Fig. 4-1, right); otherwise the applied material could drip.

Positioning Applicator (contd.)

NOTE: With rotating bar nozzles, the material outlet point is the point around which the applicator turns and on which the angle values are based.





Calculating Material Quantity

Sample Calculation

Nordson recommends following the sample calculation before starting up the applicator and making a note of the application-specific values for application weight and width, substrate speed and pump output capacity in the table *Customer-specific Values*. These values can be used to calculate the pump speed and material quantity. Nordson also recommends entering results of the calculations in the table. This ensures that all values can be reproduced at any time.

NOTE: The material quantity for intermittent application is calculated the same as for continuous material application.

Application weight (grammage) m = 20 g/m²

Application width of each material track b = 10 mm = 0.01 m

Substrate speed v = 500 m/min

Material quantity M= $\mathbf{m} \times \mathbf{b} \times \mathbf{v}$
= 20 g/m² × 0.01 m × 500 m/min = 100.0 g/minOutput capacity of pump D = 2.4 g/revolution

Pump speed n= $M \div D$ = 100.0 g/min \div 2.4 g/revolution \approx 42 rev/min

Customer-specific Values

Application weight (grammage) m	
Application width b	
Substrate speed v	
Material quantity $M = m \times b \times v$	

Output capacity of pump D	
Pump speed n = M \div D	

Correcting Material Quantity and Material Distribution

Adjusting Stem Stroke

NOTE: Only the *Control module DC-D5*, P/N 7106788, offers the stem stroke adjustment feature.

CAUTION: The control module stem stroke adjustment is preset at the factory. It may be modified only when material is distributed unevenly across the application width.

The material flow quantity is regulated with the stem stroke adjustment (1, Fig. 4-3). By setting the nozzle stem stroke differently on the individual control modules, the material distribution can be corrected.



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.



Fig. 4-3

Setting Material Distribution Evenly with Stem Stroke Adjustment

- 1. Identify the control module through which too much or too little material is flowing.
- 2. Release the stem stroke adjustment locknut (2, Fig. 4-3) on this control module.
- 3. Turn the stem stroke adjustment all the way clockwise. The control module is now closed.

CAUTION: The maximum that the stem stroke adjustment can be moved is two revolutions. Turning farther against the stop will destroy the control module.

- 4. Turn the stem stroke adjustment counterclockwise approx. one quarter of a revolution.
- 5. Measure the application weight:
- 6. If the application weight under the control module is too little, turn the stem stroke adjustment another one quarter of a revolution counterclockwise.
- 7. Repeat steps 5. and 6. until the desired application weight is achieved. If too much material is being applied, turn the stem stroke adjustment back less than a quarter of a revolution.
- 8. Measure the application weight after every correction to the stem stroke adjustment. Continue to correct the stem stroke adjustment in smaller and smaller steps until the application weight setpoint is achieved with the desired precision.
- 9. Tighten the stem stroke adjustment locknut (2, Fig. 4-3) again.

Regulating Material Distribution with the Throttle Screws



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

The material supply into the nozzle can be altered using the throttle screws. Individually adjust the throttle screws to achieve uniform material distribution.

- Turn throttle screws clockwise: less material
- Turn throttle screws counterclockwise: more material.

NOTE: The throttle screw thread pitch is 1 mm.

- 1. Turn all throttle screws all the way clockwise to achieve a defined starting point.
- 2. Unscrew all throttle screws two complete revolutions.
- 3. Measure the material distribution across the entire application width.
- 4. Optimize the setting step by step. Depending on how greatly the measurement result deviates from the desired material distribution, turn single screws or all of the screws farther out or back in. When doing this
 - Turn the screws in or out only a quarter to half revolution with each step
 - Measure material distribution again after each step.
- 5. Make a note of the optimum setting for all throttle screws.

Throttle s	Throttle screw settings							
Note: The r	Note: The number of throttle screws depends on the application width.							
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18
19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35	36
37	38	39	40	41	42	43	44	45

Optimizing Material Application with Temperature Setpoints

NOTE: Only possible when applicators have heated manifolds.

If material is properly applied to the outer edges of the application pattern but not in the middle, the applicator nozzle is concave (hollow) to the coating roll.

If the material is applied properly in the middle but not near the edges, the nozzle is convex (spherical).

These deviations from the parallel path can be corrected by setting different temperature setpoints for the manifolds on the back of the applicator than for the remaining heating zones.

Correcting Nozzle Concavity



Fig. 4-4 Nozzle is hollow (concave)

1. Set the temperature setpoints for the manifolds one to two degrees lower than the setpoints for the remaining heating zones.

The lesser heat expansion of the heating zones on the back of the applicator compensates for the concavity on the nozzle side.

NOTE: It takes about 15 - 30 minutes until the curvature is complete, depending on the weight and the heating capacity of the applicator.

2. As long as material application is not uniform across the application width, continue to adjust the temperature setpoints in steps. The temperature difference between the heating zones should never exceed 10 °C.

Correcting Nozzle Convexity



- Fig. 4-5 Nozzle is spherical (convex)
 - 1. Set the temperature setpoints for the manifolds one to two degrees higher than the setpoints for the remaining heating zones.

The greater heat expansion of the heating zones on the back of the applicator compensates for the convexity on the nozzle side.

NOTE: It takes about 15 - 30 minutes until the curvature is complete, depending on the dimensions and heating capacity of the applicator.

2. As long as material application is not uniform across the application width, continue to adjust the temperature setpoints in steps.

Setting Rotating Bar Speed

The speed of the rotating bar drive is either set manually or is a factor of the line speed signal (key-to-line).

In an application system with Nordson components, the control element used to set the speed setpoint in manual mode (e.g. potentiometer or control panel) is located either on the melter or on a separate control box.

Speed controlled by the line speed signal can also be adjusted with the same control element.

Set the speed [min⁻¹] to approx. 10% of the web speed [m/min].

Settings Record

Production information

Material	Manufacturer	
	Max. processing temperature	
	Viscosity	

Cleaning agent	Manufacturer	
	Flash point	

Basic settings	Application weight (grammage)	
	Application width	
	Substrate speed	
	Material quantity	
	Output capacity	

Air pressure at applicator	Control air	

Basic settings temperature (hea-	Applicator body	
ting zones)	Heated hose	

Pump speeds	Melter	
	Motor controller (setpoint)	

Material pressure	Melter	
	Motor controller (setpoint)	

Notes		

Form filled out by:	
Name	Date

Section 5 Maintenance



ATTENTION: Allow only qualified personnel to perform the following tasks. Observe and follow the safety instructions in this document and all other related documentation.

Relieving Pressure



ATTENTION: System and material pressurized. Before removing heated hoses and applicators, relieve system pressure. Failure to observe can result in serious burns.



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear safety goggles and heat-protective gloves.

- 1. Set the motor speed of the unit feeding the material to 0 min⁻¹; switch off the motor(s).
- 2. Place a container under the nozzle of the applicator.
- 3. Relieving pressure:
 - On an applicator with throttle screws, use the screws to open the material supply to the nozzle.
 - On an applicator with solenoid valves, activate the solenoid valves electrically or manually (Refer to Figure 5-1). Do not use sharp objects! Repeat until no more material flows out.



Fig. 5-1

Relieving Pressure (contd.)

4. Re-use the material or dispose of it properly according to local regulations.

Regular Maintenance

NOTE: Maintenance is an important preventive measure for maintaining operating safety and extending the service life of the applicator. It should never be neglected.

Unit part	Activity	Interval	Refer to
Entire applicator	Inspect for damage	Daily	Page 5-3
	External cleaning	Daily	Page 5-3
	Purge with cleaning agent	Daily when using PUR adhesi- ves	Page 5-4
Control modules	Check for leakage	Daily	-
Nozzle	Cleaning	Regularly, or when the applica- tion pattern deteriorates	Page 5-5
	Replace shim plate	When damaged	Page 5-10
	Have it refaced		
	Replace		
Cordset	Inspect for damage	Every time maintenance is per-	-
Air hoses		formed	
Control modules	Check detection holes	Daily	Page 5-3
Filter	Clean filter cartridge and re- place filter screen	Depending on degree of mate- rial pollution.	Page 5-11
		Recommendation: Every 100 hours of operation	

Visual Inspection for External Damage



CAUTION: When damaged parts pose a risk to the operational safety of the applicator and/or safety of personnel, switch off the applicator or application system and have the damaged parts replaced by qualified personnel. Use only original Nordson spare parts.

External Cleaning

External cleaning prevents impurities created during production from causing the unit to malfunction.

Always follow the manufacturer's instructions when using cleaning agents!

- 1. Electrically heat the cold applicator until the material is liquid.
- 2. Thoroughly remove the warm material with a cleaning agent and/or a soft cloth.
- 3. Remove dust, fluffs, etc. with a vacuum cleaner or a soft, lint-free cloth.

CAUTION: Do not damage or remove warning labels. Damaged or removed warning labels must be replaced by new ones.

Inspecting Control Module

If material escapes from the detection hole, the interior seals are worn. Replace the control module when this occurs. Refer to page 7-1, *Replacing Control Module with 4/2 Air Valve* or page 7-2, *Replacing Control Module with 3/2 Air Valve*.

Changing Type of Material

NOTE: Before changing the type of material, determine whether the old and new material may be mixed.

- May be mixed: Remaining old material can be flushed out using the new material.
- May not be mixed: Thoroughly purge the melter with a cleaning agent recommended by the material supplier. Refer to page 5-4.

NOTE: Properly dispose of the material and cleaning agent according to local regulations.

Purging with Cleaning Agent

CAUTION: Use only a cleaning agent recommended by the hot melt material manufacturer. Observe the Material Safety Data Sheet for the cleaning agent.

NOTE: When PUR adhesive is used, it must be prevented from reacting to the thermal load in the applicator. The applicator must be purged every day when work is completed. Rinse out cleaning agent just before beginning production again.

- 1. Maintain operating temperature.
- 2. Place a container under the nozzle.
- 3. Relieve pressure (Refer to page 5-1).
- 4. Detach heated hose from applicator (Refer to page 3-5).
- 5. Purge melter and heated hose if necessary (Refer to separate manuals).
- 6. Connect purging hose to the applicator.
- 7. Purge the applicator until the material has been flushed out completely.

NOTE: When PUR adhesive is used, do not proceed until right before production is to begin again.

- 8. Unscrew purging hose.
- 9. Screw the heated hose onto the applicator again.
- 10. Purge applicator (and, when appropriate, melter and hose) with the material currently in use to flush out the cleaning agent.

NOTE: Properly dispose of the cleaning agent according to local regulations.

Disassembling and Cleaning Slot Nozzle



Disassembling and Cleaning Slot Nozzle (contd.)



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

The nozzle must be regularly disassembled (mouthpiece, shim plate and mouthpiece receptacle) and cleaned. Material residue affects the quality of the application. It must be removed.

- 1. Heat the applicator until the material is soft.
- 2. Before releasing the clamping screws, ensure that the nozzle (4, Fig. 5-2) can not fall off.
- 3. Release all clamping screws (3, Fig. 5-2). Now the nozzle can be extracted out the side. If there is not enough space to the side of the applicator: Unscrew all of the clamps (1, Fig. 5) and extract the nozzle out the front of the unit.
- 4. Place the nozzle aside, somewhere out of harm's way.
- 5. Reduce the nozzle to the individual components: mouthpiece receptacle (7, Fig. 5-2), mouthpiece (5, Fig. 5-2) and shim plate (6, Fig. 5-2).
- 6. Clean the individual parts. Refer to the data sheet from the material manufacturer for information on cleaning agents.
- 7. Reassemble the nozzle.
- 8. Install the nozzle in the applicator again by logically reversing steps 1 to 4. When nozzles have a centering clamping screw, insert it in the center clamp.



Disassembling and Cleaning Nozzle with Rotating Bar

Fig. 5-3 Example of an applicator with rotating bar exchangeable nozzle, shown without rotating bar motor

- 1 Clamp fixing screw
- 2 Clamp
- 3 Clamping screw

- 4 Nozzle
- 5 Mouthpiece receptacle
- 6 Rotating bar

- 7 Shim plate
- 8 Mouthpiece
- 9 Bar

Disassembling and Cleaning Nozzle with Rotating Bar (contd.)



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

The nozzle must be regularly disassembled (mouthpiece, shim plate, mouthpiece receptacle and, when applicable, rotating bar) and cleaned. Remove material residue. Material residue affects the quality of the application.

- 1. Heat the applicator until the material is soft.
- 2. Switch off the rotating bar motor (6, Fig. 5-3) and detach the rotating bar from the motor. Refer to page 5-10 *Replacing Rotating Bar.*
- 3. Remove all clamping screws (3, Fig. 5-3). Now the nozzle can be extracted out the side. If there is not enough space to the side of the applicator: Unscrew all of the clamps (2, Fig. 5-3) and extract the nozzle out the front of the unit.
- 4. Place the nozzle aside, somewhere out of harm's way.
- 5. Extract the rotating bar sideways out of its track.
- 6. Unscrew the bars (9, Fig. 5-3). Ensure that the bars are not mixed up when reinstalling at a later time.
- 7. Reduce the nozzle to the individual components: mouthpiece receptacle (5, Fig. 5-3), mouthpiece (8, Fig. 5-3) and shim plate (6, Fig. 5-3).
- 8. Clean all individual parts. Refer to the data sheet from the material manufacturer for information on cleaning agents.



Fig. 5-4

NOTE: Nordson supplies a test pin with every rotating bar (1, Fig. 5-4). It helps to optimally adjust the position of the the rotating bar. The diameter of the test pin is 0.02 mm larger than that of the rotating bar. For information on how to use the test pin, refer to 9. and 12.

NOTE: If necessary, order a new test pin, \oslash 8 mm, P/N 7171775.

- 9. Clean the rotating bar seat. If there are stress marks visible on the rotating bar seat, polish them with cutting oil. To do this, emery paper can be wrapped around the test pin and used as a polishing tool.
- 10. Re-assemble the mouthpiece receptacle, mouthpiece and shim plate.

Disassembling and Cleaning Nozzle with Rotating Bar (contd.)

11. Put the bars back into place and secure with screws. Use a torque wrench to tighten the bar fastening screws. Refer to the table for torque:

Thread size	Property class Torque	
M5	8.8	6 Nm
M6	8.8	12 Nm

- 12. Slide the test pin through the rotating bar seat, with the side that is not beveled leading. If this is not possible, loosen the fastening screws somewhat in the tight places and re-position the bars. If the test pin has too much leeway, tighten the fastening screws somewhat.
- 13. Extract the test pin and save it for later use.
- 14. Slide the rotating bar under the doctor blade.
- 15. Install the nozzle in the applicator again by logically reversing steps 1 to 3.
- 16. Connect the rotating bar to its motor again.

Replacing Rotating Bar

The way in which the rotating bar drive is connected to the applicator is a factor of the available space in the parent machine and other conditions specific to the customer. Thus the procedure to detach the rotating bar drive cannot be described precisely here. In general:

- **ATTENTION:** Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.
- 1. Stop the material supply to the applicator and stop the rotating bar motor.
- 2. Detach the protective covers from moving drive elements if necessary.
- 3. Disconnect the drive from the rotating bar.
- 4. Refer to page 5-7, *Disassembling and Cleaning Nozzle with Rotating Bar,* step 3. and the following steps, for instructions on how to proceed.

Inserting New Shim Plate

The nozzle must be removed from the applicator and disassembled to replace the shim plate. Refer to page 5-5, *Disassembling and Cleaning Nozzle*.

- 1. Disassemble nozzle.
- 2. Fit new shim plate between mouthpiece and mouthpiece receptacle. The shim plate is held in place by two or more cylinder pins.
- 3. Screw nozzle halves together.

NOTE: The shim plate protrudes 0.1 to 0,3 mm out of the nozzle.

- 4. The shim plate must be ground until it is even with the mouthpiece and the mouthpiece receptacle.
- 5. Screw the nozzle onto the applicator again.

Fig. 5-5

Refacing Nozzle

The nozzle touches the substrate, causing it to naturally wear.

The nozzle may need to be refaced to compensate for wear.

NOTE: Nordson will assume no warranty or liability for damage resulting from incorrect refacing. The nozzle should be sent to Nordson for refacing.



Replacing Filter Cartridge

NOTE: Remove the filter cartridge only when the nozzle filter is hot and not pressurized. Install only when nozzle filter is hot.



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.



ATTENTION: System and material pressurized. Relieve system of pressure before replacing filter cartridge. Failure to observe can result in serious burns.

Removing Filter Cartridge

- 1. Heat applicator until material is soft.
 - 2. Relieve pressure. Refer to page 5-1.
 - 3. Insert a screw with M8 thread into the center tapped hole (Fig. 5-6).

Fig. 5-6



- 4. Place a container under the filter bore.
- 5. Unscrew the filter cartridge counterclockwise with an open-end wrench or ring wrench (Fig. 5-7).

Fig. 5-7





- 6. Use pliers to remove the filter cartridge (Fig. 5-8).
- 7. Purge the filter bore with material by allowing the melter pump to run slowly. This rinses out particles of dirt that may still be in the filter bore.
- 8. Properly dispose of material according to local regulations.

Installing Filter Cartridge

1. Heat applicator until material is soft.

2. Slide the filter cartridge into the filter bore.



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

3. Screw in the filter cartridge with an open-end wrench or ring wrench. Tighten only hand-tight; do not use excessive force (Fig. 5-9).

Fig. 5-9



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

Disassembling and Cleaning Filter Cartridge

The filter cartridge can be disassembled only when it is warm. If the filter cartridge is not disassembled immediately after removal, it must be heated (e.g. with an air heater).

NOTE: Use only a cleaning agent recommended by the hot melt material manufacturer. Observe the Material Safety Data Sheet for the cleaning agent.

NOTE: Always replace the filter screen (5).

- 1. Disassemble the filter cartridge.
- 2. Replace the filter screen (5).
- 3. Clean all other parts.
- 4. Check O-rings (3 and 6) and sealing ring (2); replace if necessary.
- 5. When assembling the filter cartridge, tighten the nut (9) with a torque wrench. Max. torque + 1.5 Nm.
- 6. Properly dispose of the cleaning agent according to local regulations.



Fig. 5-10

- 1 Filter screw
- 2 Sealing ring
- 3 O-ring 44x3
- 4 Filter sheath
- 5 Filter screen
- 6 O-ring 35x2
- 7 Perforated disk
- 8 Serrated lock washer
- 9 Nut
- 10 O-ring 38x1.5

Maintenance Record

Unit part	Activity	Date	Name	Date	Name
Applicator External inspection and cleaning					

Nozzle	Cleaning		
NOZZIC	Oleaning		
	Replace nozzle		
	Replace shim plate		

Control module	External cleaning		
Replace			
	Replace control module		

Filter cartridge	Replace filter screen		

Maintenance Record Form - Spare Copy

Unit part	Activity	Date	Name	Date	Name
Applicator	External inspection and cleaning				

Nozzle	Cleaning		
	Replace nozzle		
	Replace shim plate		

Control module	External cleaning		
	Replace control module		

Filter cartridge	Replace filter screen		

Section 6 Troubleshooting



ATTENTION: Allow only qualified personnel to perform the following tasks. Observe and follow the safety instructions in this document and all other related documentation.

Introduction

Troubleshooting tables are intended as an orientation for qualified personnel. They cannot, however, replace targeted troubleshooting with the aid of wiring diagrams and measuring instruments. They also do not include all possible problems, only those which most typically occur.

The following problems are not included in the troubleshooting tables:

- Faults in installation
- Faults in operation
- Defective cables
- Loose plug and screw connections.

In the column *Corrective action*, the remark that defective parts should be replaced is generally not included.

Troubleshooting Table

Problem	Possible cause	Corrective action	Refer to
No material	Melter tank is empty	Fill	Separate manual <i>Melter</i>
	Melter motor is not switched on	Switch on	Separate manual <i>Melter</i>
	Melter pump is not working	Check	Separate manual <i>Pump</i>
	Applicator has not yet reached operating temperature	Wait until temperature has been reached; check temperature setting if necessary	Separate manual Temperature controller
	Applicator cold or not yet warm enoughRefer to Applicator does not heat		
	Compressed air not Connect connected		Page 3-4
	Nozzle clogged	Clean nozzle	Page <mark>5-5</mark>
	Nozzle stem is stuck	Replace control module	Seite 7-1 or 7-2
	Filter cartridge is clogged	Clean or replace filter screen if necessary	Page 5-12
	Solenoid valves do not switch	Refer to Solenoid valves do not switch	
Applicator does not heat	Temperature is not set	Set on temperature controller	Separate manual Temperature controller
	Plug not connected	Connect	Page <mark>3-3</mark>
	Fuses in melter defective	Disconnect unit from line voltage, check fuses and replace if necessary	
	Heater cartridge(s) in applicator defective	Replace	Page 7-4

Problem	Possible cause	Corrective action	Refer to
Applicator does not reach the set	Heater cartridge(s) in applicator defective	Replace	Page 7-4
temperature	Ambient temperature too low	Increase ambient temperature	
Solenoid valves do not switch	Control unit not switched on	Switch on	Separate manual Control Unit
	Plug not connected or loose	Secure plug connections with a screw.	Page 3-3

Problem	Possible cause	Corrective action	Refer to
Thickened mate-	Note: Material thickening can	not be prevented; it can only b	e reduced.
rial at end of appli- cation pattern	Stem stroke too high	Check stem stroke between piston and socket block	
		Setpoint at DC-D3: 0.5 mm	
		Setpoint at DC-D5: 1.0 mm	
Application pattern not exact	Temperature not set precisely on melter	Correct setting	Separate manual <i>Melter</i>
	Temperature of applicator not set precisely	Correct setting	Page 4-1
	Material quantity/pressure not set precisely	Correct setting	Page 4-2
	Control unit not programmed correctly	Correct programming	Separate manual Control Unit
	External pollution on nozzle	Clean	Page <mark>5-5</mark>
	Pollution inside of nozzle		
	Nozzle damaged	Replace nozzle	
	Application quantity and substrate processing speed not attuned to one another	Check settings; change so as to be attuned to one another if necessary	Page 4-4
	Material unsuitable	Ask manufacturer	Data sheet of material manufacturer

Troubleshooting Table (contd.)

Problem	Possible cause	Corrective action	Refer to
The <i>open time</i> * is too long	Application temperature too high	Set temperature lower	Separate manual Temperature controller
	Material unsuitable	Ask manufacturer	Data sheet of material manufacturer
The <i>open time</i> * is too short	Application temperature too low	Set temperature higher	Separate manual Temperature controller
	Material unsuitable	Ask manufacturer	Data sheet of material manufacturer

* The *open time* is the time from when the material leaves the nozzle until it hardens on the substrate.

Section 7 Repair



ATTENTION: Allow only qualified personnel to perform the following tasks. Observe and follow the safety instructions in this document and all other related documentation.

Replacing Control Module with 4/2 Air Valve

- 1. Relieve pressure. Refer to page 5-1.
- 2. Detach the solenoid valve plug, release the control air connection and unscrew the material hose.
- 3. Extract the four screws M8 (1, Fig. 7-1).
- 4. Extract the old control module from the warm applicator.
- 5. Apply high temperature grease (Refer to the page 7-4, *Processing Materials*) to the new control module:
- To the O-rings
- To the screw threads
- Under the screw heads.
- 6. Insert the new control module, screw it into place and connect it.





Replacing Control Module with 3/2 Air Valve

Nordson recommends keeping a supply of control modules to prevent production stoppage.



CAUTION: The control module is a high precision, valuable part. Handle very carefully!

Removing Control Module

- 1. Relieve pressure. Refer to page 5-1.
- 2. Release screws (M4).





- 3. Use a suitable tool, e.g. a screwdriver, to detach the control module from the air bar (instant plug connection) (1, Fig. 7-2).
- 4. Extract the control module from the warm applicator.

Replacing Control Module with 3/2 Air Valve (contd.)

Installing Control Module

NOTE: Required tool: Torque wrench.

- 1. Apply high temperature grease (Refer to page 7-4, *Processing Materials*) (Figure 7-3):
- To the O-rings
- To the screw threads
- Under the screw heads.
- 2. Insert the new control module. Do not tilt! The control module is positioned correctly when the cylindrical part rests evenly on the body, below the detection holes. The gap between the square part and the body is then 2 mm. Also compare to the adjacent control modules or to Figure 7-3.
- 3. Screw in the screws by hand. Do not tighten yet.
- 4. Alternately tighten the two screws with a torque wrench.
 - a. Tighten both screws to 1.0 Nm.
 - b. Tighten both screws to 2,0 Nm.
 - c. Tighten both screws to 2,7 Nm.
- 5. Re-connect air and electrical connections.

NOTE: Observe the voltage stated on the ID plate of the solenoid valve.





Replacing Heater Cartridge or Temperature Sensor



ATTENTION: Hot! Risk of burns. Wear heat-protective gloves.

- 1. Heat the applicator to the material processing temperature.
- 2. Disconnect the applicator from the voltage supply.
- 3. Unscrew electrical equipment cover of the affected heating zone.
- 4. Disconnect the heater cartridge or temperature sensor.
- 5. Extract temperature sensor from the hole. Use a suitable pin to push the heater cartridge out of the hole. If a heater cartridge or temperature sensor firmly sticks, drill open the hole.
- 6. Connect the new heater cartridge or temperature sensor.
- 7. Apply PTFE grease to the new heater cartridge or temperature sensor, e.g. *GLS 595/NZ*, order number: *P/N 783959*.
- 8. Insert the new heater cartridge or temperature sensor.
- 9. Screw on electrical equipment cover.
- 10. Reconnect the voltage supply.

Processing Materials

D	esignation		Order number	Use
High temperature grease		ase		Apply to O-rings and threads
•	Can	10 g	P/N 394769	NOTE: The grease should not be mixed with other lubricants
•	Tube	250 g	P/N 783959	Oily/greasy parts must be cleaned
•	Cartridge	400 g	P/N 402238	before application.

Section 8 Technical Data

General Data

Type of heating	Electrical resistance heating elements			
Possible temperature sensors	FeKo thermal element	Pt 100	Ni 120	
Max. closing pressure without compressed air	15 bar	1,5 MPa	218 psi	
Max. closing pressure with compressed air	60 bar	6 MPa	870 psi	
Max. locking pressure without compressed air	100 bar	10 MPa	1450 psi	
Max. locking pressure with compressed air	100 bar	10 MPa	1450 psi	
Max. processable viscosity	80000 mPas	80000 cP		

Air Pressure

Control air	Approx. 5 to 6 bar	Approx. 0.5 to 0.6	Approx. 72.5 to 87
		MPa	psi

Temperatures

Max. ambient temperature	60 ° C	140 °F	
Max. operating temperature	200 ° C	392 °F	

Electrical Data



ATTENTION: The applicator is designed for only one operating voltage. Operate only at the operating voltage shown on the ID plate.

Operating voltage	230 V _{AC}
Operating voltage frequency	50/60 Hz
Degree of protection	IP 30
Power consumption	Refer to ID plate
Voltage for solenoid valve	24 V _{DC}

Dimensions and Weights

Dimensions	Refer to technical drawing
Weight	See consignment note

Torques

Control Modules



Fig. 8-1

Alternately tighten the two screws with a torque wrench.

- 1. Tighten both screws to 1.0 Nm.
- 2. Tighten both screws to 2,0 Nm.
- 3. Tighten both screws to 2,7 Nm.

Nozzle

Thread size	Property class	Torque
M5	8.8	6 Nm
M6	8.8	12 Nm
M8	8.8	25 Nm
M12	12.9	100 Nm

Clamps







Fig. 8-3